
 

Meeting contact Cathryn Filbin on 01257 515123 or email cathryn.filbin@chorley.gov.uk 

 

 
 
 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
WEDNESDAY, 2ND MARCH 2016, 6.00 PM 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1, TOWN HALL, CHORLEY 
 

AGENDA 
  

APOLOGIES 
 

1 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS 
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary interest 
in respect of matters contained in this agenda. 
 
If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. Normally 
you should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do, 
however, have the same right to speak as a member of the public and may 
remain in the room to enable you to exercise that right and then leave 
immediately. In either case you must not seek to improperly influence a 
decision on the matter. 

 

 

2 CONSIDERATION OF CALL-IN REQUEST: COMMUNITY ACTION 
PLANS 

 

(Pages 3 - 34) 

 To consider a request by Councillor Mark Perks for the following 
decision of the Executive Cabinet on 18 February 2016 to be called in: 
 
Community Action Plans 
 
A copy of the call in request form which includes the call in procedure is 
attached, along with a copy of the above report which was approved by 
the Executive Cabinet on 18 February 2016, and summary information 
from the survey as requested by the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  
 

 

3 ANY URGENT BUSINESS PREVIOUSLY AGREED WITH THE CHAIR   
 

 

 
GARY HALL  

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Councillor 
John Walker (Chair), Councillor Hasina Khan (Vice-Chair) and Councillors Aaron Beaver, Eric Bell, 
Paul Clark, Margaret France, Mark Jarnell, Margaret Lees, Matthew Lynch, June Molyneaux, 
Greg Morgan, Alistair Morwood, Debra Platt and Kim Snape.  
 
 



If you need this information in a different format, such as larger print or 
translation, please get in touch on 515151 or chorley.gov.uk 
 



Executive Decision ̀ Call-in' Request

REQUEST FOR CALL-IN OF EXECUTIVE DECISION

wish to register a request for the following Executive decision to be called in for reconsideration

prior to implementation. My objection to the decision and alternative decision/proposal are set out

below.

~~~~~ ~~~
Decision taken at/by

Decision Title:

am (please tick appropriate box)

~'`Chorley Councillor

a resident of the Borough

~ --

i ~. ~(,~y1st 4

Date published

❑ the Chair or Secretary of
a voluntary group with an
interest in the Borough

❑ a proprietor or director
of a local business
situated in the Borough

The Objection and Alternative Decision/Proposal
Continue on a separate sheet if necessary (500 words maximum)

Th Ob~ection is: ~ ~ ~ ~. C~ .- S" ~° f ~1 ~ ~~` ~` ~c~ ~.~i~. ~~-

~~
y

The alternative decision/ ro osal is: ~-~~~~~~~ -~ G'~-- ~~ ~ ~a ~ ~'~ ~ ~~ ~~ ̀~ "~ -p p ~.,r ~

.~-.
~► ~... ~ r°~ /

i.

The case for the alternative is: ..~~~~ ~'~° ~- ~ ~ ,,~;.~' rJ ~ -~ ~ ,~' ,

,~`~ ~~
~~ 1~ -mod~~~~~ ~ ~ ~~~

~~ ~~ ~

Name: ~'~~''~ ~ ~'~
(please print)

Sign tur ~-~ Date:

Address: Daytime Tel No:

Mobile Noo

',~E ~-Mail: ~j

/ ~~

Please complete and return this form to the Democratic Services Manager, Town Hall,

Chorley, PR7 1 DP. Should you have any queries about completing the form please

telephone 01257 515196.

ChrIE

Agenda Page 3 Agenda Item 2



v

Ca I I-i n Request: Accepted ~~ Rejected ❑

Reason for Rejection:

Si ned: R L''~ -- Date: ~.~9
(Chair of Overview and Scrutin

Guidance Notes

1. Requests can be made by members of the local community and Borough Councillors under the Council's
`call-in' procedure for executive decisions that have not been implemented to be reconsidered by the person
~r h~c~iv w~n ma(l~ ~f 1~~, ThA C'ni inril~C n\/L]/'~/IA\A/ 71'1/' C/~1^1 111'1\/ Tt1/1~~li~' nr~~ ~nr+n~i~~ ~~i~r~ r~r•~~.~~1~ w...r....v vv~w~ .v~~ v v r v~ v ivry cAI I<A vv~ ~./~11 1y 1 VVII\Il GI I~.1 VVI tJlllUllVl 1 NI VV IUG I I IVI C

information on what constitutes an executive decision. Both are available on the Council's Website
www.chorley.gov.uk. Alternatively further guidance can be sought from the contacts given above

Decisions which relate to individual applications for licences or planning permission cannot be called in as
they are not executive decisions.

2. Cali-in requests must be made in writing and received by the Head of Democratic Services at the address
given overleaf within 5 working days of the relevant decision being published. All requests must state the
decision reference number, title, and the reasons for the objection to the decision and present an alternative
decision of proposal for consideration.

3. All requests for call-in are considered initially by the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC)
who v~eill reject any considered to be frivolous, defamatory, incomplete or otherwise outside the scope of the
call-in procedure or inappropriate for consideration. Call-in requests accepted by the OSC Chair will be
submitted to a special meeting of the OSC.

4. Where a decision is referred back to the original decision-maker no steps shall then be taken to implement
the decision until it has been reconsidered by the body or person who made it. If a decision is referred to
Council, the Council will decide at its next meeting whether to review or scrutinise the decision and if so,
when and how. But there is no obligation in that event to postpone any implementation of the decision. If the
Council does decide to review or scrutinise the decision, the Council will only have power to express views or
make recommendations to the body or person who made it, unless it was not in accordance with the Policy
Framework or was contrary to or not wholly consistent with the Budget.

5. The C SC may itself decide within 2 months of a decision being made to review and scrutinise it and formulate
VIP\A/C nr rPrtlYYll'YIAYI!'Iatlrlt'1C fnr r~nr~cirlor~tinn h~~ +ham ~'•,hir,r,~ .,.-..J .,r ~4... 4....J.. -~~ ~--- -~- 1~--...... ... ...vv. ~ ~~ ~ ~v~ ~~wu~~v~ ~v ~v~ vv~ 1.7~uv1 GlIV1 I AJ~/ 11 IG VQ{J11 IGl QI IU Vf ll IG I.~VU~/ UI ~ri~.7U~ ~ w~ ~() rriaUe ~~~~i

decision. Those views or recommendations must then be considered within three months.

6o Where the OSC refers a decision back, the decision-maker is under an obligation to reconsider the original
decision in the light of the representations made. There is no requirement however, to change the decision.
Following such reconsideration, the decision, with or without modification, may be implemented and it cannot
be call-in again.

7. Call-in requests will be acknowledged within 5 working days of receipt° Decisions regarding the request will be
notified to the originator of the call-in request by the Head of Democratic Services within 5 working days of
the decision being taken.

~'~ ~., V~.
~. Chc~rlE

Agenda Page 4 Agenda Item 2



 

 

 

 

 

Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Public Protection 
Streetscene and Community 
(Introduced by the Executive 

Member for Community) 

Executive Cabinet  18 February 2016 

 

COMMUNITY ACTION PLANS - UPDATE 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To update Members on the progress of the four community action plans and seek 
approval for budget spend on agreed projects 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. Members are asked note the progress made in the development of Community Action 
Plans for each of the pilot areas. (Chorley East Ward, Clayton Brook, Astley Village and 
Rural) 

3. Members are asked to approve the budget allocation to the Community Action Plan 
projects identified and described in this report. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

4. In March 2015 Council agreed to commence and develop community action plan 
programme to augment the existing neighbourhood working service. It was agreed that 4 
pilot areas would be used – Chorley East Ward, Astley Village, Clayton Brook and a 
themed Rural Areas  

 

5. Work on the four community action plan areas; Chorley East Ward, Astley Village, Clayton 
Brook and Rural has progressed with a combination of stakeholder groups, data and local 
knowledge identifying projects that will have an impact on the respective locations. 

 

6. The detail of the rationale used and the progress made for each community action plan 
area is provided below in 'Background Information' and this report seeks approval for 
budget spend on the actions that have been prioritised as a result of a RAG rating process 
detailed below. 

 

7. Indicative costs for these projects have been established and the projects have been 
assessed and rated on their deliverability, in terms of Council influence and control, and 
prioritised based on potential impact for local residents and communities. Appendix A 
provides a full list of the projects requiring additional funding and the results of this 
assessment with the proposed approach to funding outlined below.   

 
8. It is proposed that the £200,000 budget allocated for community action plan initiatives is 

apportioned to the projects that are rated green in terms of the capacity and capability of 
delivery lying with the Councils control and where the impact is deemed high (Green 1) or 
medium (Green 3). This applies to the following projects: 

 

 

Agenda Page 5 Agenda Item 2



High impact and deliverability - 13 projects 
 

Project Cost 

Haworth Road Parking Provision (East Ward) £46,000 

Consultation event at Tatton Community Centre (East Ward) £3,000 

Additional health walks in rural areas (Rural) £1,000 

Increase elderly resident engagement (Rural) £5,000 

Support for Community, Cultural and Entertainment events (Rural) £3,000 

Traffic calming in rural hot spots (Rural) £7,000 

Community car scheme in rural areas (Rural) £3,000 

Car parking at Astley Village Community Centre (Astley) £25,000 

Improvements to subway in Astley Village (Astley) £15,000 

Astley Village gateway schemes (Astley) £12,000 

Extension of employment projects in Clayton Brook (Clayton Brook) £10,000 

Community Café project in Clayton Brook village hall (Clayton Brook) £5,000 

Funding of local opportunities for young people (Clayton Brook) £8,000 

Total £143,000.00 

 
Medium impact and deliverability – 1 project 
 

Project Cost 

Improvements to Astley Village Centre canopy £35,000 

Total £35,000.00 

 

9. In addition and due to the high impact envisaged, approval is sought to progress the 
following project within the Rural Community Action Plan, albeit that we will be reliant on an 
external agency to resource and pursue the actions arising out of additional enforcement 
resource (Amber 1).  

 
High impact, external delivery – 1 project 
 

Project Cost 

Parking enforcement in rural areas £4,000 

Total £4,000.00 

 
10. Should the recommendation be approved the total budget spend would be £182,000.  This 

will leave an underspend of £18,000 which it is proposed is allocated to the Rural CAP 
project of providing additional activities for young people in rural areas through the Councils 
Community Teams sport and play programme. 

 

11. These projects are forecast to be delivered in 2016/17. The projects that are not 
recommended here for budget approval will remain in the individual Community Action 
Plans and will be reassessed in terms of priority against other projects and issues that arise 
from the Community Action Plan process over the next financial year.  

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 6 Agenda Item 2



Confidential report 
Please bold as appropriate 

Yes  No 

Key Decision? 
Please bold as appropriate 

Yes  No 

 

Reason  
Please bold as appropriate 

1, a change in service 
provision that impacts upon 
the service revenue budget by 
£100,000 or more 

2, a contract worth £100,000 
or more 

3, a new or unprogrammed 
capital scheme of £100,000 or 
more 

4, Significant impact in 
environmental, social or 
physical terms in two or 
more wards  

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

(If the recommendations are accepted) 

12. To progress the development and delivery of community action plans. 

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

13. None 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
14. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Involving residents in improving their local 
area and equality of access for all 

 A strong local economy  

Clean, safe and healthy communities  An ambitious council that does more 
to meet the needs of residents and 
the local area 

√ 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
15. In 2007 Chorley Council embarked on a programme of neighbourhood working which, 

over a number of years, has developed into the current process where the established 
Neighbourhood Groups select up to three preferred projects for delivery in each financial 
year. The preferred projects have tended to be discreet low cost infrastructure work 
packages which would not necessarily have received priority treatment through business 
as usual delivery. 

 

16. In 2015 the Council determined that the development of Community Action Planning 
should be piloted in four discreet areas as the next step with the emphasis on determining 
wider community needs and developing actions to meet those needs. It was envisaged 
that the actions would be larger in scale than neighbourhood preferred projects and in 
some cases delivered over the medium to long term rather than within a financial year. 

 

17. It is intended to review the community action plan process within the next financial year 
and a further paper will be drafted for Executive Cabinet at that time to determine the 
future direction and development of Community Action Planning in Chorley. 

 

18. The four community action plan areas have each developed a unique approach to 
developing their action plan, but in each case led by a senior officer and lead Member. For 
context each area has developed their plan as follows: 

 

Agenda Page 7 Agenda Item 2



CHORLEY EAST WARD 
 

CAP Area Chorley East Ward 

Lead Officer Simon Clark 
 

Lead Member Cllr A Morwood 
 

Background 
 

 
A stakeholder group was formed with the Chorley East Ward Members, a 
representative from the volunteer community and a representative from the 
main registered social housing provider. The stakeholder group has 
identified several themes under which any actions would be developed – 
these are: 

 Community Consultation 

 Promoting Community Assets in Chorley East Ward 

 Housing 

 Environment 

 Access to Community Facilities and Assets 

 Employment 

Discussions within the stakeholder group identified that consultation with 
the community is a key action to establish what they see as their needs and 
to explore the role of co-production in addressing those needs. Therefore in 
the interim and to address a particular local issue the group determined that 
a large scale infrastructure action should be delivered. 
 

Actions 
Determined to 

Date 

 
Consultation 
Identify existing (known) community needs and planned action/projects 
 
Identify key community stakeholders who can act as point of reference for the 
CAP stakeholder group 
 
Develop a consultation and communication process to engage with Chorley 
East Ward community 
 
Undertake wider consultation with the community to determine their priorities 
for Chorley East Ward 
 
Promoting Community Assets 
 
Identify the assets in Chorley East Ward that can be better promoted to 
increase the popularity of the area: such as Healey Nab; Canal Walks; Lord 
St MUGA; Tatton CC; Green Space 
 
Housing 
 
Develop a programme to support tenants in becoming the ‘best’ tenants and 
integrated into community life 
 
Identify and provide targeted assessment of housing standards conditions in 
high density private rented sector areas 
 
Targeted activity to address the impact of high tenancy turnover in Chorley 
East – fly tipping of flat clearances 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 8 Agenda Item 2



Environment 
 
Land at Haworth Road – scope development of site into a parking area for 
school and visitors accessing Healey Nab – provide local information boards 
on walks and history of H Nab 
 
Back Eaves Lane – improvements to ‘common land’ at 144- 150 Eaves Lane 
and 11-15 Colyton Road  
 
Ex Hospital Site -  Morris Homes resolve ‘wall’ issue and designated footpath 
 
Steeley Lane Gateway project 
 
Back Alleys – map ownership and responsibility for back streets including 
gullies, weeds and surface condition 
 
Deprivation/Inequality 
 
Identify gaps in facility provision and hurdles to community using them to 
optimum capacity 
 
Employment 
 
Set up a Job Club to provide support and advice in terms of CV writing, 
interview technique and application completion support 
 
Engage adult learning providers to develop outreach resources for Chorley 
East Ward residents 
 
Link the Councils business advice, employment and skills team with targeted 
activity. 
 

Delivery of 
Actions 

 
Some actions identified above are already being delivered through a re-focus 
of service provision in terms of business as usual work. e.g. 
 
 
Identify and provide targeted assessment of housing standards conditions in 
high density private rented sector areas 
 
Back Alleys – map ownership and responsibility for back streets including 
gullies, weeds and surface condition 
 
Steeley Lane Gateway project 
 

 

ASTLEY VILLAGE 
 

CAP Area Astley Village 

Lead Officer Gary Hall 
 

Lead Member Cllr S Murfitt 

Background 
 

Actions to be delivered within Astley Village have been determined through 
a data and intelligence driven approach. Reviewing information from a 
range of sources such as Indices of Multiple Deprivation, resident 
satisfaction information and data from the Office for National Statistics 
(OCS) has highlighted a number of key priorities or challenges for Astley: 

 Community cohesion due to high numbers of rented properties 

Agenda Page 9 Agenda Item 2



 Perceptions of safety after dark including anti-social behaviour 

 Traffic, parking and speeding 

 Better and more attractive local facilities and amenities 

 Support for young families including access to employment due to 

pockets of deprivation 

 Support for local businesses to create a vibrant village centre 

The themes for delivery include: 
 

 Traffic and transport provision 

 Health and social inclusion 

 Public realm and local business improvement 

 Customers, community and stakeholders 

 Improving outcomes for local residents 

Actions 
Determined to 
Date 

The following actions are planned to be progressed over the next year, 
grouped by theme:  
 
Traffic and transport provision 

 Identify a suitable area for Derian parking 

 Explore the use of the land on pony field 

 Explore the use of the Rugby Club for formal parking 

 Explore the possible use of Euxton Lane developments site as a solution 

for parking and further Derian House development 

 Identify a suitable area for event parking problems 

 Improve Westway fields drainage 

 Create formally surfaced parking on the land next to Parklands High 

schools 

Health and social inclusion  

 Improve drainage on Westway field so the use of pitches is maximised 

 Investigate changing pitch layout 

 Make the pitches available only to under 16’s to solve current issues of 

adults using the pitches 

 Create a new play area located in between LCC football pitch and CBC 

pitches 

 Create access to new rugby development facilities via Westway field 

Public realm improvements  

 Environmental improvements to the main village centre approach 

including re-surfacing and the introduction additional lighting, planting, 

seating and public art. 

 Extension and rationalisation of car parking at Astley Village Community 

Centre 

 Rationalisation of public realm around the Village centre car park 

including re-rendering of the ‘back of house’ wall, provision of a timber 

clad bin store and installation of the ‘green wall’ feature.  

 Timber cladding to the village centre canopy  

 Astley Village subway repointing of steps and blockwork, installation of 

additional hand rail and ground cover planting  

 Village centre Gateway Schemes, combining planting with lighting and 

signage and two locations 

Agenda Page 10 Agenda Item 2



 
Customers, Community and Stakeholders  

 Strengthen partnership working with existing groups to develop a greater 

sense of community.  

 Identify or create a mechanism to engage the local community and 

provide a fresh voice for residents in the area.  

 Develop volunteering activity in the area and promote time credits as a 

way to share skills and earn rewards 

 Work with residents to increase community cohesiveness.  

 Better manage community assets 

 Develop a youth pact. involving young people and letting them have a 

say in their local community matters. 

Improving outcomes for residents  

 Develop initiatives to equip residents with the skills and resources they 

need to access employment opportunities  

 Targeted work with families, parents and children to support improved 

outcomes   

Delivery of 
Actions 

The actions within the plan are designed to have sustainable benefits 
across a number of themes.  Many actions are already being facilitated 
through small changes to business as usual, such as linking shop owners 
with the council’s business support team and closer working with the 
Chorley VCFS Network to help local community groups to develop. Work 
has also been progressed to secure funding for further provision in the 
WestWay area. 
 
Certain actions around public realm improvements to the commercial centre 
have been identified as a priority if funding is approved. These actions have 
been prioritised as they will contribute towards a number of cross-cutting 
benefits for the local community.  For example, better lighting will improve 
community safety; improvements to the commercial centre will create a 
more attractive environment to encourage trade and increase local civic 
pride. The actions aim to deliver tangible improvements towards making a 
more vibrant and accessible village, resulting in better facilities for visitors, 
local businesses and residents alike. 

 
CLAYTON BROOK 
 

CAP Area Clayton Brook 

Lead Officer Jamie Carson 
 

Lead Member Cllr M Lynch 
 

Background 
 

A management group involving Clayton-le-Woods North ward has met on 
several occasions.  They have looked at data for Clayton Brook and have 
taken into consideration planned and existing activity in the area.  Given the 
significant levels of activity in the area, it was not felt to be the best use of 
everybodies time to convene meetings of all stakeholders to discuss all 
elements of the plan. 
 
The group have identified the following work streams: 
 
1. Maximise the use and community involvement in the Village Hal. 
2. Improve the environment and encourage pride in Clayton Brook. 
3. Increase opportunities for young people to be active, engaged and 

develop. 

Agenda Page 11 Agenda Item 2



4. Work with residents and Places for People to improve housing. 
5. Enhance employment opportunities for local residents. 
6. Increase community safety on Clayton Brook. 
 
However, there will be further consultation and engagement with various 
stakeholders under each work stream.  For example, there will be work with 
the Parish Council to consider how a masterplan for play and recreation 
areas will increase opportunities for young people to be active, engage and 
develop.  Other examples include working with Places for People on 
housing issues and public realm and working with employers to enhance 
employment opportunities. 
 

Actions 
Determined to 
Date 

The following actions are planned to be progressed over the next 12 
months.  Some are existing activities that are to continue, some have made 
initial steps and others have yet to start.  Sustainability and developing 
community capacity is a key element of the plan and opportunities to 
progress this are being explored at all times: 
 

 Complete extension works at Clayton Brook Village Hall. 

 Create a community café to be operated as a community enterprise. 

 Explore community management of the Village Hall. 

 Enhance joint working amongst organisations responsible for the 
public realm. 

 Develop opportunities for local people to access training and 
employment. 

 Maximise community involvement in the public realm, for example, 
the Grow To Share project. 

 Ensure the long term sustainability of the Aspire Youth Club. 

 Lighting project for the MUGA area. 
 

Delivery of 
Actions 

If the recommendations are approved this will support projects on 
employment, the community café and providing local opportunities for 
young people.  We will look to support the Grow To Share group with other 
funding sources and will need to revisit enhancement works to the central 
precinct.  There are many other tasks that do not require additional funding 
and could be delivered by using existing resources more effectively in 
partnership.  These projects will be progressed, with partners, and include 
for example: 
 

 Extend the reach and involvement of Community Action Plan working. 

 Integration projects, working with residents originating from Eastern 
European communities. 

 Working with the Police to address community safety concerns that 
residents have. 

 Improve access to NHS dentistry services. 

 Early intervention and prevention work with whole families. 

 Work with schools, at their request, to enhance road safety. 

 Develop Time Credit opportunities in the local area. 

 Explore better ways to communicate and engage with residents. 
 

 
RURAL AREAS 
 

CAP Area Rural Areas 

Lead Officer Lesley Ann Fenton 
 

Lead Member Cllr A Whittaker 
 

Agenda Page 12 Agenda Item 2



Background 
 

The Rural Action Plan was focused on the borough’s wards which are 
classified as rural by the Office for National Statistics (ONS) and included: 
 

 Brindle and Hoghton 

 Chisnall 

 Eccleston and Mawdsley 

 Heath Charnock and Rivington 

 Lostock 

 Pennine 

 Wheelton and Withnell 
 
Given the geographical scale of this action plan it was agreed with 
members at the on-set of the programme that this action plan would focus 
on four themes informed mainly from data relating to these rural areas 
provided by Public Health England and the Office for National Statistics.  
The four themes were: 
 

 Health and Social Inclusion 

 Digital Access 

 Traffic and Transport Provision 

 Employment Opportunity 
 

Due to the high number of stakeholders relating to this action plan in order 
to keep meetings manageable but give all concerned the opportunity to 
discuss the research findings and put forward proposals two stakeholder 
groups were established.  The first involved the chairs from the fifteen 
Parish Councils covered by the plan.  The second stakeholder group 
involved the thirteen ward and County Councillors covering those areas. 

 
As part of the development of the Action Plan, the Stakeholder groups 
considered feedback from rural residents involved in the Council’s Resident 
Satisfaction Survey.  The themes reflected residents views on what the 
main priorities for improvement should be in their area, in particular 
speeding and other traffic issues was identified as a top priority.  Litter in 
rural areas was also a top priority which will be picked up by the action plan. 
 
 

Actions 
Determined to 
Date 

 
There are 29 actions in total identified in the Rural Community Action Plan 
under the four themes. 
 
Health & Wellbeing. 
 
Seventeen of the actions fall under this theme aimed at delivering three key 
objectives. 
 
The first objective is to improve existing open space and outdoor provision.  
Eight actions are identified which include for example implementing the play 
provision as set out in the Play and Open Spaces Strategy, reviewing 
existing low quality sites in rural areas to identify appropriate improvement 
projects for 2017-19, undertaking conservation work in Rivington and to 
work with rural areas to undertake community clean-ups. 
 
The second objective is to deliver a programme of activities to help improve 
health and wellbeing. Four actions are identified and include, organising 
social and other recreational cycling opportunities through rural villages, 
supporting the continued existence of the Wymott Bowling Green, delivering 
additional health walks in rural areas and introducing more activities in rural 

Agenda Page 13 Agenda Item 2



areas for 11-14 year olds. 
 
The third objective is to tackle social isolation in rural areas.  Five actions 
have been identified including increasing the meals on wheels take-up,  
piloting a local volunteering network, increasing the number of elderly 
residents attending luncheon clubs etc., exploring the potential for more pop 
up cafes in rural villages and introducing a grant scheme to support the 
continuation and new community, cultural and entertainment events in rural 
areas. 
 
Digital Access 
 
The main objective under this theme is to increase access to supported on-
line services and help individuals and communities understand and gain the 
benefit of being on-line. 
 
There are two actions identified. One will involve working with the parish 
council’s to develop rural hubs which enables local residents to access IT 
equipment and receive digital support and training.  The other action is 
working with LCC to increase broadband coverage and speed in rural 
areas. 
 
Traffic and Transport Provision 
 
There are two key objectives under this theme.  The first is to improve road 
safety in rural areas and three actions have ben identified and include 
delivering traffic calming measures in hot spot areas and to tackle illegal 
parking on footpaths and verges in village areas. 
 
The second objective is to ensure rural residents have access to public and 
community transport in their area.  Three actions will seek to work with 
LCC, Parish Councils and third parties to increase the number of volunteer 
drivers.  Linked with the actions around social isolation, explore with 
partners who own mini buses the potential to utilise dormant vehicles during 
the day and to consider ways to provide subsidised public transport in rural 
areas once LCC support is withdrawn. 
 
 
Employment Opportunities 
 
There are two key objectives under this theme. One is focused on creating 
jobs in rural areas by supporting rural business start-ups and rural business 
expansions.  Three actions will include improving publicity of the business 
support services in rural areas, publicising the availability of shop front and 
vacant property grants in the rural areas and introducing an on-line Borough 
directory to support the development of local supply chains. 
 
The other objective is to support unemployed residents in rural areas to 
access training and job opportunities.  The action will promote the Chorley 
Works Programme in the rural wards with the highest no of JSA claimants. 
 

Delivery of 
Actions 

Over 60% of the actions identified can be delivered within existing 
resources or have funding already earmarked for delivery e.g S106 funding   
A few are subject to funding bids.  If the funding proposed for the rural 
actions are approved then this will support the delivery of eight key actions. 
  

 
 
 

Agenda Page 14 Agenda Item 2



IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 
 

19. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments 
are included: 

 

Finance  Customer Services   

Human Resources  Equality and Diversity   

Legal  Integrated Impact Assessment 
required? 

 

No significant implications in this area  Policy and Communications  

 
COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER  
 

20. The £200k revenue budget for Community Action Plans was allocated from 15/16 New 
Homes Bonus. This will be carried forward into 2016/17 to fund these projects. Some of 
these projects may meet the requirements of capital expenditure. In this case the revenue 
budget will be moved to fully meet these capital costs and therefore have no impact on 
borrowing. 

 

21. Funding for future projects not included in this report will need to be requested as part of 
the 2017/18 budget setting process. 

 
 
COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER  

 

22. No comments 

 
JAMIE CARSON 
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC PROTECTION STREETSCENE AND COMMUNITY 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Simon Clark 5732 15 February 2016 CAPbudget 2016 

 

 

Agenda Page 15 Agenda Item 2



APPENDIX A  

 

Ability to deliver 

Green 
Delivered entirely within CBC capability or contract 
management 

Amber 
Delivered with some capability provided by 
external/partner agencies 

Red 
Delivered using entirely external capability and funding 
streams 

 

 

 
 
 

Project Title 
CAP 
Area 

Theme Detail Indicative cost Deliverability Priority 

Haworth Road 
Parking Project 

East 
Ward 

Environment 

Haworth Road – area of undeveloped 
council owned land adjacent to Chorley St 
James Primary School. Proposed 
development of car parking provision for 
school pick up and gateway to Healey 
Nab – indicative cost would provide 32 
spaces and information boards about the 
area. 

£46K Green 1 

Consultation 
event at Tatton 

Community Centre 

East 
Ward 

Consultation 

Consultation event at Tatton CC  - 
interactive sessions to seek resident and 
business views on the development of the 
CAP and what their priorities are in the 
medium/long term 

£3K Green 1 

Engage with 
young people 

East 
Ward 

Consultation 
Engaging with young people in the area to 
seek their views – using Bauer Media 
approach – 4 interactive sessions 

£3K Amber 1 

Level of 
priority 

Description 

1 
High impact and within notional £50K budget  provision per 
CAP area 

2 
Medium impact and within notional £50K budget provision per 
CAP area 

3 
High impact and outside a notional £50K budget provision per 
CAP area 

4 
Medium impact and outside a notional £50K budget provision 
per CAP area 

5 
Low impact and within a notional £50K budget provision per 
CAP area  

6 
Low impact and outside a notional £50K budget provision per 
CAP area   

Recommended for approval 

A
genda P

age 16
A

genda Item
 2



Project Title 
CAP 
Area 

Theme Detail Indicative cost Deliverability Priority 

Eaves Lane 
Hospital Wall 

East 
Ward 

Environment 

Hospital Wall – a residual boundary wall 
on the old Eaves Lane hospital site  to be 
demolished and the obsolete public 
footpath behind integrated with the 
adopted highway footway  

£26K Green 4 

Activities for 11-14 
year olds in rural 

areas 
Rural 

Health & Social 
inclusion 

Introduce more activities for 11-14  year 
olds in rural areas 
 
It will be localised to a few villages.  
However it was a priority by residents. 
Members may want to spend some 
money. 

£30k to fund play 
rangers/employ 

casual staff 
Green 4 

Additional health 
walks in rural 

areas 
Rural 

Health & Social 
Inclusion 

Introduce additional health walks in rural 
areas 

£1k to pay 
expenses and cost 

of training and 
equipment. 

Green 1 

Increase elderly 
resident 

engagement 
Rural 

Health & Social 
Inclusion 

Increase no of elderly residents attending 
luncheon clubs, pop up cafes  visits to  
attractions in Chorley and outside the 
borough etc. 

£5k to subsidise 
travel, support 
public liability 

insurance for pop up 
cafes 

Green 1 

Support for 
Community, 
Cultural and 

Entertainment 
events 

Rural 
Health & Social 

Inclusion 
Support for Community, Cultural and 
Entertainment events 

£3k to create a 
small rural grant pot 
(max. £250 grant) 

Green 1 

Traffic calming in 
rural hot spots 

Rural 
 

Traffic & 
Transport 
Provision 

Introduce Traffic calming in rural hot spot 
areas using  SPIDs 

£7k to purchase and 
install SPIDs 

Green 1 

Parking 
enforcement in 

rural areas 
Rural 

Traffic & 
Transport 
Provision 

Blitz hot spot illegal parking on footpaths 
and verges in Eccleston, Croston and 
Brinscall evenings and weekends 

£1k to fund 
Parkwise overtime. 

Amber 1 

A
genda P

age 17
A

genda Item
 2



Project Title 
CAP 
Area 

Theme Detail Indicative cost Deliverability Priority 

Community car 
scheme in rural 

areas 
Rural 

Traffic and 
Transport 

Develop/extend a community car scheme 
in rural areas  

£3k to cover 
insurance, DBS 

checks and 
subsidise costs for 

volunteers. 

Green 1 

Hall Gate car park 
improvements 

Astley 
Public Realm 
Improvements 

Raised carriageway table and footpath 
connection from Hall Gate Car Park.  

£15,000 Amber 3 

Environmental 
improvements to 

Astley Village 
Community Centre 

Astley 
Public Realm 
Improvements 

Environmental improvements to the main 
Village Centre approach including 
resurfacing and the introduction of 
additional lighting, planting, seating and 
public art. 

£50,000 Amber 3 

Car parking at 
Astley Village 

Community Centre 
Astley 

Public Realm 
Improvements 

Extension and rationalisation of car 
parking at Astley Village Community 
Centre  

£25,000 Green 1 

Rationalisation of 
public realm 

around Astley 
Village 

Community Centre 

Astley 
Public Realm 
Improvements 

Rationalisation of public realm around the 
Village Centre car park including re-
rendering of the ‘back of house’ wall, 
provision of a timber clad bin store and 
installation of the ‘green wall’ feature..  

£60,000 Amber 3 

Improvements to 
Astley Village 
Centre canopy 

Astley 
Public Realm 
Improvements 

Timber cladding to Village Centre Canopy.  £35,000 Green 3 

Improvements to 
subway in Astley 

Village 
Astley 

Public Realm 
Improvements 

Astley Village Subway repointing of steps 
and blockwork, installation of additional 
hand rail and ground cover planting  

£15,000 Green 1 

Astley Village 
gateway schemes 

Astley 
Public Realm 
Improvements 

Village Centre Gateway schemes, 
combining planting with lighting and 
signage in 2 locations £12,000 

£12,000 Green 1 

Extension of 
employment 
projects in 

Clayton Brook 

Clayton 
Brook 

Employment 
Extend the capacity of existing 
employment projects to target Clayton 
Brook residents. 

£10,000 Green 1 

A
genda P

age 18
A

genda Item
 2



Project Title 
CAP 
Area 

Theme Detail Indicative cost Deliverability Priority 

Community Café 
project in Clayton 
Brook village hall 

Clayton 
Brook 

Health and 
Social Inclusion 

Pump priming funding to establish the 
Community Café project within Clayton 
Brook Village Hall, 

£5,000 Green 1 

Funding of local 
opportunities for 
young people in 
Clayton Brook 

Clayton 
Brook 

Health and 
Social Inclusion 

Funding to ensure there are local 
opportunities for young people.  This will 
be used to develop the Aspire Youth Club 
and create formal links with the 
community café and the Youth Zone. 

£8,000 Green 1 

Clayton Brook 
Community 

Growing Group 

Clayton 
Brook 

Health and 
Social Inclusion 

Clayton Brook Community Growing group 
have requested funding to support the 
development of their project.  They have 
asked for £10,000 per year, for 3 years.  
They have been asked to provide further 
information. 

£10,000 Amber 5 

Enhancement of 
the precinct in 
Clayton Brook 

Clayton 
Brook 

Public Realm 
Improvements 

£25,000 to fund a programme of works to 
further enhance the precinct in Clayton 
Brook.  This would include CBC land, 
Places for People and private owners. 

£25,000 Amber 3 

 
 

A
genda P

age 19
A

genda Item
 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Astley and Buckshaw  

The main differences between Astley and Buckshaw Ward and All Chorley are as follows; 

Housing 

The population density of Astley and Buckshaw is more than double that of all Chorley at 11.9 

persons per hectare (Chorley 5.3 persons per hectare)  (however this is only the 8th highest Ward). 

The percentage of flats, maisonettes or apartments in Astley and Buckshaw is more than double 

that of all Chorley at 23.0% (Chorley 9.2%).  There is also a much lower percentage of Semi Detached 

and Terraced houses/bungalows, whilst thie percentage of detached houses or bungalows is similar 

to Chorley. 

Overcrowding is higher at 7.7% (Chorley 3.8%). 

Unemployment 

Unemployment is only slightly higher than all Chorley with 6.7% unemployed (Chorley 6.2%). 

JSA claimants are also only slightly higher than Chorley at 1.0% (Chorley 0.9%).  There is however a 

higher rate of claimants aged 18-24 at 25.0% (Chorley 19.7%), and those aged 50 and over at 34.4% 

(Chorley 26.9%).  The duration of claim is also higher with 31.2% claiming for over 6 up to 12 

months (Chorley 23.5) and over 12 months 28.1% (Chorley 24.7%).   

Long term sick or disabled is higher at 5.1% (Chorley 4.5%). 

Deprivation 

Income deprivation is slightly higher at 12.2% (Chorley 10.7%). 

Child poverty is much higher at 18% (Chorley 13.5%).  This is the percentage of children aged 0-15 

living in income deprived households. 

 Health 

The rate of hospital admissions for injuries in under 5s is higher at 198.7 per 10,000 population 

(Chorley 157.6). 

Emergency admissions in under 5s is also higher at 226.8 per 1,000 population (Chorley 176.9). 

The admissions for injury in under 18s is also slightly higher at 1,405.5 per 100,000 population 

(Chorley 1,338.6) 

However life expectancy is better with Females at 85.7 and Males at 80.1 (Chorley – Females 81.6 

and Males 78.3) 

Crime 

While there are fewer calls to the Police – 251.8 per 1,000 population (Chorley 271.1), there are 

almost double the amount of calls to the Ambulance Services at 204.2 per 1,000 population 

Agenda Page 21 Agenda Item 2



(Chorley 120.1), as well as a higher rate of calls to the Fire and Rescue Services at 10.2 per 1,000 

population (Chorley 7.4). 

Total recorded crime is slightly higher at 50.8 per 1,000 population (Chorley 47.6). 

Violence against the person is higher at 14.4 per 1,000 population (Chorley 11.4). 

Calls to the Police about Domestic violence is higher at 14.9 per 1,000 population (Chorley 11.2). 

Serious acquisitive crime is higher at 11.1 per 1,000 population (Chorley 6.5). 

All vehicle crime is more than double at 10.6 per 1,000 population (Chorley 5.1).  Theft  of a vehicle 

is lower 0.4 (Chorley 0.9), however theft from a vehicle is much higher at 8.2 per 1,000 population 

(Chorley 3.5). 

Calls to the police about anti-social behaviour are slightly higher at 40.3 per 1,000 population 

(Chorley 37.8). 

The number killed or seriously injured on the roads is higher at 0.7 per 1,000 population (Chorley 

0.3). 

                                                           
i
 Data sources: 
Office for National Statistics (2011 Census) 
Public Health England 2014 
Safer Lancashire 2015 

Agenda Page 22 Agenda Item 2



Astley Village 

This report outlines the findings in relation to the Astley Village Community Action Plan (CAP) area. The findings are drawn from the data 

gathered from the Residents Satisfaction Survey 2015. The survey had a total of 1,299 responses, with a total of 66 people responding from 

this CAP area (25 male, 38 female). The key responses from residents in Astley Village have been outlined and a comparison to the responses 

from all the individuals who responded to the survey has been made, where this has been deemed useful for analytical purposes. 

Astley Village respondent demographics - The majority of respondents were in the 60-69 years age group. 99% of respondents from this 

area reported being White (English- welsh/Scottish/Northern Irish/British), with 1% reporting that they were Asian or Asian British (Indian).  63% 

described their religion as Christianity and 25% reported having no religion or belief. 26% of Astley Village residents reported having a long 

standing illness, disability or infirmity, with 75% saying this this illness or disability limits their activities in some way. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Key points – Astley Village 

• Positive net views (i.e positive views –negative views) around the council making Chorley a better place to live and the 

Council being easy to contact 

• Most respondents in this CAP area own their property outright, a higher than percentage than all residents, although a  

higher percentage of Astley Village residents rent from housing association or Trust than all respondents 

• A lower proportion of residents reported being in full time work than all respondents; however a higher percentage of 

residents said that they are retired from work 

• The majority of respondents said they were fairly satisfied with their local area as a place to live 

• With regards to key services, the highest levels of satisfaction were found around parks and open spaces and highest 

dissatisfaction around keeping public land clear of litter and refuse 

• Slightly more residents felt unsafe after dark than all respondents; although a similar percentage said that they felt safe 

after dark to all respondents 

• Astley Village residents are slightly more willing to work together to either support their community or local organisations 

than all respondents  

• The antisocial issue most residents deemed to be a very big problem was people being drunk and rowdy in public 

places. The issue deemed by most residents as ‘not a problem at all’ was noisy neighbours or loud parties 

• The main priorities for improvement were speeding and other issues, environmental issues and shops and other 

amenities 

A
genda P

age 23
A

genda Item
 2



Astley Village Data Analysis 

Home Ownership 

               

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Employment 

When compared to responses for all 

respondents, significantly fewer in the Astley 

Village area are in full time employment (all 

respondents – 47%, Astley Village - 26%). 

However, a higher proportion of respondents 

from the Astley Village area reported being 

retired than all respondents, slightly more 

also said they were permanently sick or 

disabled and slightly more reported being in 

part time work than the main sample of all 

residents. 

A higher percentage (55%) of residents from the Astley Village 

area own their property outright than all respondents (36%). 

However, a lower percentage of residents from this area (21%) 

have bought their property through a mortgage than all 

respondents (46%). 

 A higher percentage of residents from Astley Village also rent from 

a Housing Association or Trust than all respondents (All- 8%, 

Astley -21%).   

Employment 

When compared to responses for all respondents, 

significantly fewer in the Astley Village area are in full 

time employment (All respondents – 47%, Astley 

Village - 26%).  

However, a higher proportion of respondents from the 

Astley Village area (50%) reported being retired than 

all respondents (26%), slightly more also said they 

were permanently sick or disabled. 

A
genda P

age 24
A

genda Item
 2



Satisfied with local area as place to live 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

Astley Village  All Respondents 

Views of Astley residents seem to mirror those of all respondents in that the majority of respondents are fairly satisfied with their local area 

as a place to live. 

Most respondents from Astley Village are fairly satisfied with their local area as a place to live (50%). In terms of overall satisfaction, 92% 

of residents from this area were either satisfied or fairly satisfied with their local area as a place to live. 

Dissatisfaction levels are very similar for both Astley village residents and all respondents, with 8% of respondents from both samples 

saying that they were either fairly or very dissatisfied with their local area as a place to live. 

A
genda P

age 25
A

genda Item
 2



Satisfaction with the way the Council runs things                                                                                                                       

                                          

       

    

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

More respondents from Astley Village (80%) are either very or fairly 

satisfied with the way the Council runs things than all respondents (77%). 

Slightly fewer of Astley Village residents (8%) said they were dissatisfied 

than all respondents (12%) 

Value for money 

66% of Astley Village respondents strongly agree or tend to agree that 

the council provides Value for money, which is a higher percentage than 

all respondents (60%). 

Keeping Residents informed 

Astley Village residents seem to feel as informed as all 

respondents. 

As is the case for all respondents, most residents from Astley 

Village believe that Chorley council keeps residents fairly well 

informed about the services and benefits it provides. 

32% of Astley Village respondents said that they were not very 

well informed or not well informed at all, compared to 32% of all 

respondents. 

A
genda P

age 26
A

genda Item
 2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Acting on the concerns of local Residents 

The majority of Astley Village residents agree that the council acts on the concerns of local residents either a great deal or a fair amount 

(54%), this is the same percentage of all respondents (54%). 

However, slightly fewer Astley Village residents (20%) said that the believed the Council acts on the concerns of local residents either not very 

much or not at all than the sample of all respondents (27%). 

 

A
genda P

age 27
A

genda Item
 2



Satisfaction with Key Services (Streetscene) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A higher percentage of respondents from Astley Village were satisfied with key services than were dissatisfied.  

Most respondents from Astley Village were very satisfied with parks and open spaces. 

The highest levels of dissatisfaction were found around keeping public land clear of litter and refuse, with 13% of Astley Village residents 

saying that they were either fairly or very dissatisfied with this service. 

A
genda P

age 28
A

genda Item
 2



Feeling Safe  

After dark… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

During the day 

A higher percentage of respondents (20%) from Astley Village area said that they felt unsafe (either fairly or very, but majority fairly) after 

dark than all respondents (14%). However, a similar percentage of respondents from this area said that they feel either very or fairly safe 

after dark than all respondents (Astley – 73%, All- 72%). 

A similar percentage of residents from Astley Village (96%) said that they feel either fairly or very safe during the day when compared to 

all respondents (92%), with slightly less residents reporting that they feel either fairly or very unsafe during the day than all respondents. 

A
genda P

age 29
A

genda Item
 2



Community Involvement  

  

Main priority for improvement (first mentioned in free responses) 

Residents were asked to comment on what they viewed was the main area for improvement in their local area. For Astley Village, the top three 

categories for responses were: 

1. Speeding and other issues (8%) 

2. Environmental issues incl. litter (8%) 

3. Shops and other amenities (7%) 

Note: 47% positive comment or no improvements given 

 

 

55% of Astley Village respondents said they would be 

willing to work together to improve the local area, either 

strongly agreeing or tending to agree. 

57% of Astley Village respondents also said they would 

be willing to work together to support local organisations. 

Willingness of Astley Village residents in both of these 

areas seems to be slightly higher that the willingness of 

‘all respondents’. 

 

A
genda P

age 30
A

genda Item
 2



Antisocial behaviour issues 

Most respondents perceived people being drunk or rowdy in public places to be a very big problem in terms of antisocial behaviour (although 

only 7% of respondents). The issue which most residents viewed to be ‘not a problem at all’ was noisy neighbours or loud parties. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A
genda P

age 31
A

genda Item
 2



Chorley Council…. 

The table below shows net scores, i.e where negative opinions (‘not very much’ and ‘not at all’) have been deducted from positive (i.e ‘a great 

deal and ‘to some extent’). For this question, ‘don’t know’ scores were excluded and only those who expressed an opinion included. 

 Net Score 

Is making Chorley a better place to live  73% 

Making my neighbourhood a better place to live  44% 

Supports things for families to do 62% 

Making Chorley a better place to work 22% 

Involves Residents in decision making 3% 

Is efficient and well run 33% 

Has staff who are friendly and polite  73% 

Is easy to contact 78% 

Listens to the concerns of local residents 35% 

 

 

 

 

IMD Data  

 

 

Particularly positive net scores are shown for the 

council making Chorley a better place to live (+75%) 

and the Council being easy to contact (+78%) 

 

The least positive score was around the council 

involving residents in decision making (+3%), 

although 19 people (32%) said they ‘didn’t know’ on 

this particular statement. 

Considerations  

The findings above have to be viewed in light of certain considerations with the data: 

• Limited sample. Sample of all respondents contains 1299 people, whereas the Astley Village sample is only 66 people 

• All responses sample – includes responses from Astley Village 

• Although the data is weighted, a high proportion of respondents were 60-69 years 

• Figures are rounded to the nearest whole percent 

 

A
genda P

age 32
A

genda Item
 2



Indices of Deprivation 2015 

Astley and Buckshaw 

Astley and Buckshaw has 2 LSOAs, neither of which are in the top 20% nationally for multiple deprivation. 

 
Chorley 

Rank 

2015 2010 
Trend 

Decile Rank Decile Rank 

Astley Village south 46 8 25,030 8 23,345  

Buckshaw Village & Astley Village North 19 4 13116 2 6062  

 

 

Income deprivation 
Employment 
deprivation 

Education, skills & 
training 

Health deprivation & 
disability 

 

2010 2015   2010 2015   2010 2015   2010 2015   

Astley Village south 22136 21725  14244 17243  29222 29343  13896 16405 

Buckshaw Village & Astley Village North 5320 11402  3990 12517  6112 17309  2873 3915 

 

 

Crime 
Barriers to housing & 

services 
Living environment 

 

2010 2015   2010 2015   2010 2015 


Astley Village south 26154 23782  24378 24923  26767 29330 

Buckshaw Village & Astley Village North 12166 23020  17655 17199  25569 22023 

 

A
genda P

age 33
A

genda Item
 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Consideration of Call-in Request: Community Action Plans
	CommunityActionPlanUpdateFeb2016 (4), 18/02/2016 Executive Cabinet
	Astley and Buckshaw overview
	Astley Village


